United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

SIXTEENTH SESSION

SECOND COMMITTEE, 784th

MEETING

Monday, 11 December 1961,
at 3.10 p.m.

NEW YORK

Official Records
CONTENTS
Page
Agenda item 28:

Economic development of under-developed

countries (continued):

(e) Prqvision of food surpluses to food-
deficient peoples through the United
Nations system. ... ......... cown s ST

Agenda item 31:
Progress and operations of the Special Fund
feontinued) . .. .. ..o vnnnnnn. 378
Organization of the Committee's work. . . . ... 380

Chairman: Mr. Blasco LANZA D’AJETA (ltaly).

AGENDA ITEM 28

Economic development of under-developed countries (con-

tinued):

(e) Provision of food surpluses to food-deficient peoples
through the United Nations system (A/4820 and Corr.2,
chapter 11, section 1ll; A/4907 and Add.1 and Add.1/
Corr.1 ond Add.2, E/3509, A/C.2/L.617/Add.2, A/
C.2/L.617/Rev.1)

1. Mr. HASSAN (Somalia) said that his country,
which had recently suffered disastrous floods, was
well able to appreciate the importance of the world
food programme proposed in the draft resolution
(A/C.2/L.617/Rev.1). His delegation endorsed the
principles expressed in that draft but would em-
phasize that the provision of food should in no way
hamper the diversification of agriculture in the
recipient countries, It would also suggest that, as
the usual period of planning was five years, the ex-
perimental programme envisaged in the draft should
likewise be established for a five~year period.

2. Mr, GREEN (New Zealand) said that his country
had supported the resolution of the FAO Conference
on a world food programme and was prepared to
support a General Assembly resolution endorsing
the proposals made in it. His delegation considered
that in the long run the problem of food deficiencies
could only be solved by increasing the productive
capacit‘y of the food-deficient countries themselves
s0 that they could either grow the food they required
or afford to import it, In the compromise resolution
it had adopted on the subject at its last session, the
Assembly had given explicit recognition to that
long-term solution. The problem of surpluges was
a different and more complex matter, Surpluses
were a result of the price support and subsidy
policies of some countries, and the international
disposal of such subsidies would always affect com~
mercial markets, although attempts could be made
to minimize the resulting dislocations. The im-

377

portant international machinery already established
to deal with the problem must therefore remain
in operation.

3. The first of his delegation's amendments (A/C.2/
L.631) reiterated, as the General Assembly had done
in resolution 1496 (XV) and the Economic and Social
Council in resolution 832 (XXXII), the "transitional™
nature of surplus disposals of utilization as a solution
to the problem of hunger. The next two amendments
gave recognition to the existing machinery for inter-
governmental consultation on surpluses. The FAO
Consultative Sub-Committee on Surplus Disposal
covered all commodity surpluses and therefore
covered products such as cotton, tin, lead and zinc,
etc. It was important in a resolution setting up new
consultative machinery to bear fully in mind the
vital machinery already in existence which should
continue its present functions. Furthermore, the
Assembly discussed at great length, the previous
year, the question of safeguarding trade of com-
mercial food exporters. Specific references to the
safeguards had been mentioned in the FAO reso-
lution and it was important for the Assembly to
do likewise,

4, In view of the discussions which had taken place
during and after the FAO Conference, and in the
light of press speculation that a very. much larger
programme of food disposals might be introduced
into the United Nations, his delegation considered
that operative paragraph 15 of part II of the draft
resolution might be taken as an implicit endorse-
ment of some as yet only vaguely outlined schemes.
Moreover, the last part of the paragraph gave rise
to considerable difficulties of interpretation and
could amount to the prejudging of an issue which
should be very carefully and fully discussed before
receiving any kind of treatment in an Assembly
resolution., There was no adequate time even to
begin a discussion of the wide issues which would
arise if an expansion of "the scope" of the pro-
gramme were to be injected into the present debate.
His delegation therefore considered that it would
be better at that stage to delete the paragraph, and
had so proposed in its fourth amendment,

5. Dr. SACKS (World Health Organization) said
that WHO had been consulted on the medical and
public health aspects of the proposal before the
Committee, The relief of under-nutrition and mal~
nutrition was of fundamental importance for the
health and well-being of a large part of the world's
population, and therefore to enable those popula-
tions to improve their living conditions, FAO and
WHO, because of their mutual interest in those
questions, had established a solid framework of
collaboration over the past fifteen years. They had,
for instance, set up joint committees of experts;
they had developed joint programmes in the fields
falling within their competence; and they had pre~

A/C.2/SR.784



378 General Assembly — Sixteenth Session — Second Committee

pared studies on the fundamental problems of nutri-
tion, and on integrated programmes carried out by
FAO, WHO and UNICEF. FAO and WHO remained
in consultation from the time projects were drafted
until they had been executed and assessed inthe field.

6. WHO had an important role to play in the public
health aspects of short and long-term nutritional
programmes, and looked forward to close co-opera-
tion with FAO and the United Nations, in the Inter-
Governmental Committee and the joint United Nations
FAO administrative unit.

7. Mr. BRILLANTES (Philippines) remarked that
there seemed to be no dispute on the basic prin-
ciples underlying the draft resolution; what differ-
ences of opinion existed related only to procedural
matters. He would suggest that, in order to re-
concile those differences, the two preambular para-
graphs in part II of the draft resolution should be
incorporated into the first preambular part of the
draft, and operative paragraph 14 reworded to read:

"Decides to undertake, in the light of experience
gained and results achieved, a general review of
the programme, its accomplishments and develop~
ment, not later than the eighteenth session of the
General Assembly, with a view to considering the
appropriate steps to be taken thereafter."

8. His delegation would also suggest that the word
"Approves" in operative paragraphs 1 and 2 of part
I should be changed to "Concurs" in order to bring
the paragraphs into conformity with the wording
used in the resolution of the FAO Conference.

9. Mr., BOIKO (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic)
considered that the programme proposed in the
draft resolution might divert attention from the
problem of enabling the under-developed countries
to provide the food their peoples needed by in-
creasing their own productivity to the narrower
problem of the agricultural surpluses produced by
some Western countries. His delegation also under-
stood the fears expressed by the representatives
of food-exporting countries regarding the effects
of the programme on their trade, It considered
that food surpluses were a problem of Governments
and not of peoples, for the unemployed in the
Western countries certainly had no food surpluses,
while the money contributed by taxpayers to pro-
duce those surpluses could be better used to buy
more food. In view of the possibly adverse effects
of the programme, to which attention had been drawn
in a number of passages of the Secretary-General's
report on the subject (E/3509), his delegation con-
sidered that the draft resolution should contain a
provision providing for a review of the programme,
including, in particular, an assessment of its use-
fulness in furthering the economic and agricultural
development of recipient countries and its effects
on the traditional exporters of food.

10. Mr. GUNASEKERA (Ceylon) welcomed the addi-
tion of the second preambular paragraph in part II
of the draft resolution, since his delegation attached
considerable importance to the role of different
types of assistance in promoting economic develop-
ment. The draft resolution was to be commended,
as it would be a means of providing assistance in
times of disaster. However, in view of the adminis~
trative procedure and consequent delays which the
proposed programme might involve, the urgent nature
of the need for food aid in times of disaster should

be taken into account. The Ceylonese delegation
supported the oral amendment to the second pre-
ambular paragraph of part II submitted by the repre-
sentative of Tunisia (783rd meeting),

AGENDA ITEM 31

Progress and operations of the Special Fund (A/4820 and
Corr.2, chapterll, section Ill; A/ 4897, E/ 3435, E/ 3521,
SF/L.45 and Corr.1, SF/L.45/ Add.1 and Corr.1,A/ C.2/
L.614/Rev.1) (continued)

11, The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to re-
sume its consideration of the four-Power draft
resolution, a new text of which had been circulated
(A/C.2/L.614/Rev.1).

12, Mr. MAKEEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) regretted that the draft resolution, which
dealt with many important and complex matters con-
cerned with present and future activities of the
Special Fund, had not been submitted in time for
delegations to study it in detail. The draft reso-
lution as a whole was too vague. It overestimated
the role of the Special Fund and failed to do justice
to the Expanded Programme of Technical Assistance
and other United Nations technical assistance pro-
grammes. The activities of the Special Fund were
open to certain criticisms. The Fund,worked slowly
and only a few of the numerous projects selected
had in fact been implemented. As had been pointed
out by many of the less developed countries, it
was wrong for the Fund to concentrate on pre-
investment  activities: such a policy was contrary
to General Assembly resolution 1240 (XII), which
had established the Special Fund and specified that
it should also deal with various experimental pro-
jects which were of importance for the develop-
ment of the industry and economy of the less de-
veloped countries. A change in policy was needed
in order for the Fund to fulfil the economic de-
velopment needs of those countries. One of the
main defects of the draft resolution was that it en-
dorsed the basically incorrect policy being pursued.

13. The Soviet delegation considered that the au-
thority of the Managing Director of the Special Fund
should be limited, particularly with regard to the
rejection of projects submitted by Governments.
Information should be provided on the projects not
included in the programme and the Managing Direc-
tor should submit a special report to the Governing
Council on that subject, so that the Council could
decide whether or not particular projects should
be accepted. The specialized agencies executing
Special Fund projects were not using the services
of firms in certain countries, including socialist
countries, and were excluding them from participa-
tion in the projects. Information should be given on
the firms invited to participate and on the reasons
for their acceptance. The Managing Director and
the specialized agencies concerned should contract
the services of firms on a wide international basis
and use the potentialities of all countries. The
local expenditure of the Special Fund was far too
high. On the other hand, the stipulation that the
less developed countries had to make an initial
contribution to cover local costs before a project
was started was unsatisfactory and could be used
to delay the implementation of certain projects.

14, The Soviet Union was not opposed to the co-
ordination of aid from all sources but it was un-
certain what international organizations were en-



784th meeting — 11 December 1961 379

visaged in operative paragraph 1 of the draft
resolution. In its present form, the paragraph might
adversely affect the entire work being carried out
In the field of technical assistance. As it had said
at the last session of the Technical Assistance
Committee, the Soviet delegation detected a regret~
ta}ble tendency to link United Nations technical as~
sistance programmes with aid provided within the
framework of military blocs and alliances such as
the North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO). The
crea?ion of a consortium comprising all programmes
of aid to the less developed countries and headed
by the Special Fund would result in the extension
of the Fund's present incorrect policy to all types
of aid and would hinder work on the establishment
o§ a United Nations capital development fund. In
view of the important and far-reaching consequences
which the adoption of the draft resolution might
have, it would be preferable to postpone the vote
on it until a later stage, possibly until the seven-
teenth session of the General Assembly.

15. Mr. HASSAN (Somalia) suggested that a re-
commendation might be inserted in operative para-
graph 1 to the effect that the Special Fund should
extend its activities beyond pre-investment assist-
ance and help to establish industries in the under-
developed countries,

16. Mr. VIAUD (France) said that, although the
changes which had been made in the text of the
draft resolution reflected a desire to take into
account the views expressed, the criticisms raised
by the French delegation were of fundamental im-
portance. Certain types of co-operation between
the Special Fund and other bodies dealing with
technical assistance could not be decided upon in
advance. Even a preliminary study of forms of
co~-operation could not be other than pragmatic
and should proceed on the basis of each individual
case, without affecting the principle that the deci-
slon regarding the desirability of co-ordination
rested with the Governments requesting assistance.
The French delegation had certain doubts regarding
the seventh preambular paragraph, since co-ordina-
tion could not always be carried out by the Special
Fund and other methods should be considered. The
same doubts also applied to operative paragraph 1,
since, even if certain Governments wanted the Special
Fund to be associated with specific projects, that
was not necessarily a desirable method of expanding
the Fund's activities, The necessary expansion should
be achieved by increasing the resources available
to the Fund and by adapting its terms of reference.
Moreover, it was not clear what non-governmental
organizations were envisaged in that paragraph. The
French delegation wished to reserve its position
regarding the opportunities for closer association
offered by the regional economic commissions and
the resident representatives, since the necessary
preliminary study had not yet been made. It inter-
preted operative paragraph 3 in the sense that the
principles and procedures to be recommended should
be framed in practical and not in abstract terms.

17. Mr. HARLAND (New Zealand) said that the
vagueness of the draft resolution, to which the
representative of the Soviet Union had referred,
was deliberate, because the sponsors had no pre-
conceived notions about how the idea contained there-
in should be put into practice. The late submission
of the draft resoclution was not the fault of the
sponsors, since the discussion of the item had been

brought forward in the Committee's agenda. Pre-~
cisely because there was only limited time available
for discussion, the draft resolution should not pre~
judge the issues involved. The representative of the
Soviet Union had said that the role of the Special
Fund was being over-estimated. However, the Fund
was the body which was closest to the needs, prob-
lems and aspirations of the developing countries
and it was therefore appropriate that it should be
given the task of preparing the proposed study,
which would be of a practical nature. It was not
accurate to speak of a consortium of technical
assistance programmes, since the sponsors en-—
visaged an approach on a project basis and the
only co-~ordination possible would be between spe-
cific projects; accordingly, in the draft resolution,
references were made to projects of the Special
Fund. The possible role of the Expanded Programme
of Technical Assistance was covered by the phrase
in operative paragraph 2: "in consultation, as appro-
priate, with other agencies within the United Nations
family"., The draft resolution had been criticized
for not going beyond the existing terms of refer-
ence and programmes of the Special Fund, but it
had been the sponsors' intention that the draft reso-
lution should remain within the existing legislation
and policies of the Fund. The reference to different
types of organizations had been included in opera-
tive paragraph 1 in order to show that any available
source of assistance could come within its scope.
The sponsors had been concerned with the avail-
ability, rather than with the source, of assistance,
and it was not in the interests of the less developed
countries to give a narrow definition of aid. In reply
to the representative of France, he would point out
that the draft resolution was indeed pragmatic in
approach and that it included references to the
participation of Governments, which was an essen-
tial element in any arrangements for assistance.
The role of the regional economic commissions
and the resident representatives was not prejudged
in operative paragraph 2.

18. The sponsors of the draft resolution had been
concerned with the point of view of the less developed
countries themselves. Doubt had been expressed as
to whether the draft resolution would increase the
flow of aid to such countries. It was likely that the
flow would be increased, and a considerable amount
of aid had been used in the past for purposes which
were not the most fruitful from the long-term point
of view, Concentration on the most important pro-
jects would result in a more effective use of the
aid available.

19. Mr. MAKEEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) sald that the statement just made by the
New Zealand representative merely proved that the
subject of the joint draft resolution was extremely
complex and deserved more careful study. The
sponsors would be unwise to insist that the Com-
mittee take a hasty decision on their text.

20, Mr. DIMBU (Romania) said that the joint draft
resolution had taken his delegation by surprise.
It was much more complex than it had at first
appeared, Its basic aim was to expand the Special
Fund's activities and to assign new functions to
its Managing Director, The seventh preambular
paragraph and operative paragraphs 1 and 2 raised
constitutional problems which could not be solved
by reference to the existing legislation of the Special
Fund. No member of the Second Committee had



380 General Assembly — Sixteenth Session — Second Committee

the right to push through a draft resolution which
contained such provisions. At the present stage,
the Committee did not even have time to decide
whether the study recommended was desirable, The
aim of the draft resolution must first be clarified
and Governments consulted as to the wisdom of
expanding the original terms of reference of the
Special Fund. His delegation suggested that a deci-
sion on the matter should be postponed until the
seventeenth session.

21, Mr. KAKITSUBO (Japan) said that the text of
the draft resolution was simple and straightforward:
it contained no hidden pitfalls. Its aim was to in-
crease the activities of the Special Fund within its
existing terms of reference. The number of requests
made to the Special Fund was increasing and many
of them related to large-scale projects which the
Fund could not finance with its own resources. Hence
the need for closer association with other forms
of aid, There was no question of expanding the
activities of the Special Fund at the present stage;
all that was asked for was a report from the Man-
aging Director, Nor should there be any fear that
the adoption of the draft resolution might lead to
an increase in the amount of assistance rendered
for military or political purposes. It was already
one of the guiding principles of the Special Fund
that the assistance it furnished should not be ac-
companied by any conditions of a political nature.
As to the question raised by the French repre-
sentative about the non-governmental organizations
mentioned in operative paragraph 1, the existing
terms of reference of the Special Fund authorized
it to receive donations from non-governmental
sources, without specifying exactly what those
" sources were.

22, Mr. LINGAM (India) felt it would be very dif-
ficult at the present stage for the Committee to
take a decision on the draft resolution. His dele-
gation had serious reservations about operative
paragraph 1. The Special Fund had been in opera-
tion for only a short time and it was too early to
say whether its activities should be expanded. The
draft resolution which the Committee had adopted
at its 777th meeting on the United Nations Develop-
ment Decade (A/C.2/L.555 and Add.1-3) also re-
quested the Special Fund to expand its services
along lines very similar to those recommended
in the draft resolution. He hoped that the sponsors
would not press it to a vote, If they did, India would
have to abstain,

23. Mr., HARLAND (New Zealand) said, in reply
to the Indian representative, that the service re-
commended in document A/C.2/1..555 differed from
that proposed in the joint draft resolution (A/C.2/
L.614/Rev.l); the former related to assistance al~-
ready given by the Special Fund whereas the latter
related to assistance within the field of pre-invest=
ment that might be requested in the future.

24, Mr. CARANICAS (Greece) moved the closure
of the debate on the draft resolution (A/C.2/L.614/
Rev.1) under rule 118 of the rules of procedure.

The motion for closure was adopted by 22 votes
to none, with 46 abstentions.

Organization of the Committee's work (A/C.2/L.632)

25. Mr. LINGAM (India) thought that the Chair-
man's suggestions (A/C.2/L.632) were practical,

logical and impartial, He proposed that the Com-
mittee should adopt them,

26, Mr. BERNARDO (Argentina) supported the
Chairman's suggestions in principle but felt that
the one contained in paragraph 6 was premature,

27. Mr. VIAUD (France) agreed with the repre-
sentative of Argentina regarding paragraph 6 of
document A/C.2/L.632. It should be made clear
that the items not disposed of by 19 December 1961
would be referred to the seventeenth session of
the General Assembly. Even if the Assembly, for
reasons which were not the concern of the Second
Committee, decided to resume its sixteenth session
after 31 December 1961, that would not justify the
reconvening of the Second Committee. There was
the risk that the programme of work of the Eco-
nomic and Social Council and its functional com-
missions might be completely disrupted. That was
one more reason why the French delegation opposed
any recommendation which might involve a resump-
tion of the sixteenth session so far as the Second
Committee was concerned,

28, In any event, the final inclusion of items in
the agenda of the seventeenth session of the General
Assembly would of course depend on the Assembly
itself and the recommendations of the General Com-
mittee at that session, The Second Committee could
therefore only record an opinion as to the items Fo
be included in that agenda; it could not make a dfe01—
sion, He agreed with the Chairman's suggestions
contained in paragraph 5 (a) and (b).

29, Mr. MALINOWSKI (Secretary of the Com;nittee),
replying to the representatives of Argentina and
France, said that under rule 13 of the rules of
procedure any items not debated at the cur.rent
session would, if recommended by the Committee
itself and the General Assembly, be includeq in
the provisional agenda for the seventeenth session.
The decision as to whether they would rémain in
the final agenda at that session would, of course,
be for the General Assembly to take at that time.

30. Mr. WODAJO (Ethiopia) agreed with the sug-
gestions made by the Chairman in document A_/C.2/
L.632. Items 22 (b) and (¢), on the economic de-
velopment of Africa and African educational de-
velopment, were particularly urgent and deserved
the Committee's immediate attention, since item
22 (c) referred to a programme which had' already
been initiated by UNESCO and the Economic Com-
mission for Africa while item 22 (b) had al.ready
been postponed from the fifteenth session. The items
entitled "Population growth and economic develop-
ment" (item 84) and "Permanent Sovereignty over
natural resources" (item 87) were, undoubted%y, ex—
tremely important, but they did not call for imme-
diate action, so that it would be better to postpone
the discussion of them until there was sufficient
time available.

31. Mr. TABIBI (Afghanistan) said that the fear he
had expressed at the 716th meeting of the Com-
mittee that the placing of item 87 at the end of the
agenda might mean its postponement untll.the. fol—
lowing session had unfortunately proved justified.
In the view of his delegation that item was one of
the most important on the agendas of the Com-
mittee and the General Assembly; he could not
agree that it was controversial. Neverthel'ess, in
the circumstances there was no alternative but



784th meeting — 11 December 1961 381

tq accept the Chairman's proposals, since other-
wise none of the other items would be completed,

32. However, since item 87, had already been de-
layed for four years, he proposed to submit, with
other delegations, a procedural draft resolutionl
recommending, first that the mandate of the Com-~
mission on Permanent Sovereignty over Natural
Resources should be continued; secondly, that the
Secretariat should publish the study already made
by that Commission; and thirdly, that the item on
permanent sovereignty over natural resources (item
87) should be given first priority either at the re-
sumed sixteenth session, if it took place, or at
the seventeenth session.

33. In the meantime, his delegation fully approved
the proposals in paragraph 5 (a), (b) and (c) of
document A/C.2/L1.632.

34, Mr. BOLIN (Sweden) said that his delegation
endorsed the proposals in document A/C.2/L.632,
However, he considered that if it were decided to
postpone discussion of items 84 and 87, then item
84 should be discussed before item 87. As a matter
of principle he believed that the Committee should
keep to the agenda order which it had decided upon,
since nothing had happened to change the relative
importance of the different items, and he hoped
that the representative of Afghanistan would agree
with that point of view,

35, Mr. FINGER (United States of America) and
Mr. CHAMMAS (Lebanon) suggested that the Com-

RYJ Subsequently circulated as document A /C.2/L.634,

mittee should confine its discussion to paragraph

5 of document A/C.2/L.632 and take up paragraph
6 after the General Committee had taken a decision
regarding a resumed session,

36. Mr. BUTTI (Iraq), after expressing his dele-
gation's agreement with the views put forward by
the representative of Afghanistan, pointed out that
the proposed time-table did not appear to allow any
time for discussion of the Second Committee's draft

report,

37. Mr. MALINOWSKI (Secretary of the Committee),
in reply to the representative of Irag, said that the
Rapporteur proposed to make a statement on that
subject at the following meeting.

38. Mr. CARANICAS (Greece) appealed to the spon-
sors of the draft resolution entitled "Inflation in
under-developed areas" (A/C.2/L.564/Rev.l) to
withdraw their text for the current session, as the
subject was an extremely important one on which
it would be better not to rush discussion. If con-
sideration of that draft resolution and of items
84 and 87 were postponed until the next session,
the Committee should be able to complete its work
by 18 December,

39. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the Committee
should accept the proposal by the representative of
the United States to adopt paragraph 5 (a), (b) and
(c) of document A/C.2/L.632 and to discuss para-
graph 6 after the next meeting of the General
Committee.

It was so decided.
The meeting rose at 6,40 p.m,

Litho inUN,

77201—April 1962~2,100





